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The Bullock-Clifton House is located in the eastern section of Louisville in the
Deer Park neighborhood. It was, until about 1920, the manor house for the sur-
rounding thirty acres, At that time, the neighborhood was subdivided. The neigh-
borhood consists of both brick and frame residences generally of bungalow design,

The Bullock-Clifton House was built in two sections. The rear section, 1834, was

a Federal residence with a central hall-parlor plan, facing northwardly., In 1873

the eastern half of the Federal residence was removed and the Italianate/Eastlake style
residence was attached facing eastwardly.

The front section of the house is two-and-one-half stories in height. A bulbous
octagonal tower in the center of the facade rises to a cupola on the fourth level,
with paired arched windows on four sides and single blind arches on the alternate
four sides. The third lével‘of the tower, which adjoins the attic, has a wide
octagonal cornice supported by paired brackets and lined with carved panels,

Arched windows are located on the north and east sides only. The second floor level
of the tower consists of paired windows with eared frames and arch motifs in the
lintel. The first floor level of the tower is the main entrance to the house.

The arched entry is recessed through another arched opening., A large door hood

is supported by grand brackets with pendills. The south facade bay has a large
front gable with a wide bargeboard pierced with decorative filigree. Square paired
windows are tucked under the bargeboard at the attic level, On the second floor

is a pair of windows with a single pedlmental hood and carved panel. The first floor
contains a rectangular bay window with ‘a’flat bracketed hood and carved panels. The
northern facade bay has a smaller gable with identical bargeboard and a pair of
windows on the second floor with a diamond-shaped carved panel between. The first
floor of the north side of the facade contains two windows and a ‘porch. There is
currently no access to this porch from the recessed entryway, and no evidence that
there ever was access. The north side of the house has the same treatment as the
south facade bay, except with a three-sided bay window instead of a rectangular

bay window on the 'first Floor. The southern side of the house has a five-sided

bay window and a gable with a bargeboard identical to the others.

The rear Federal style section of the house was severed when the front section was
added, leaving the central hall and two rooms on each floor. What remains on the
exterior is three bays on both the north and south sides and two bays on the rear.
(See photo 4) The windows have simple frames. The size of the windows on the rear
section match those on the front section. They are inappropriate for the Federal
style, which indicates that they were elongated at the time the front section was
added, The two doors on the rear of the building were also added in 1873, They
were originally windows. On the north side of the house is the original entrance
to the Federal residence, closed in and roofed, probably in 1873 with the other
alterations. It was a receSsed entry, similar to the entry of the Snow House,
Chaplin, Connecticut, which dates 1822, (See photo 13) With the exception of the
Palladian window, the Snow House very closely resembles the original Bullock House.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE :
The Bullock-Clifton House, located in the eastern_section of Louisville, is one of the
most interesting variations of the Italianate style in the city, with fine craftsmanship dis -

played in the Eastlake armamental trim. In addition,the rear section a federal style struc-
ture, is the oldest known frame residence in the city, built in 1834, William Bullock,

the original owner of the 1834 residence, was a distinguished Kentucky statesman, judge,
orator and philanthropist. He established the common school system in Kentucky, was re-
sponsible for improved conditions in social institutions,and founded the Kentucky School
for the Blind.

William Bullock was the son of the Hon. Edmund Bullock, a prominent judge in Lexington,
Kentucky. Educated at Transylvania University in Lexington, William Bullock was noted
for his speaking ability even before his graduation in 1824, While a student, Bullock
was chosen to speak at a welcome home ceremony for Henry Clay. Nearly fifty years later,
he gave another speech upon the placement of the statue of Henry Clay in the Jefferson
County Courthouse rotunda. His oration on that occasion was his most famous.

Bullock is important to Kentucky history in many.areas. . He was elected to the Kentucky
Legislature in 1838, 1840 and 1841, While serving as a member of the legislature,
Bullock introduced the hill which led to the establishment of the common school system
in Kentucky. Throughout his career as lawyer and Fifth District judge, Bullock was

a public school system advocate and promoter. He was also responsible for seeing that
institutions for the insane and institutions for indigent women were upgraded.

Bullock's crowning glory during his legislative career was his succeéssful lobbying

to procure an endowment from the state for an institution for the blind. The first
state appropriation was set forth in 1841, The result of Bullock's work, the Ken-
tucky School for the Blind, is still in operation today and is praised as one of

the finest institutions of its kind in the nation. Bullock worked closely with the
school his entire life, He was an original trustee and served as the second president
of the Board of Directors of the school. He was also the first president of the
American Printinghouse for the Blind which is still in operation today. 1

Bullock moved to Louisville in 1828 and set up his law practice. In 1834 he purchased
79 acres on the Bardstown Pike from William Pope, a land magnate in that section of the
county. It was at this time that construction of the Federal residence was begun.

The Bullock residence was a double pile, central hall-parlor plan, two stories in
height with a hip roof. The fenestration consisted of five windows across the second
floor and a central recessed entrance with two windows on either side. Each side of
the house had two windows on each floor. The house closely resembled the Snow House,
Chaplin, Connecticut, 1822 (See photo 13).2 This is the oldest known frame residence
remaining in Louisville, .
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The interior of the front section of the house is designed in a central hall - parlor
plan. The ceilings are all fourteen feet high. The hallway has parquet floors and
Lincrusta-Walton wainscoting. The formal parlor is to the right of the hall and has
a lovely bay window.and large marble fireplace with a central cartouche and geometric
panels. This fireplace has a large gilded mirror above, which oral tradition has
said comes from the Galt House in Louisville. The parlor to the left of the hall

has a matching fireplace, as do both the library and dining room. The dining room
bay window provides a large raised nook surrounded by five full length windows. The
windows and doors on the first floor all have wide rolled frames, and all baseboards
are approximately fourteen inches wide. On the second floor, the window and door
frames are the same as on the first floor, but not as wide. The baseboards on the
second floor are approximately ten inches wide. All windows on both floors are very
tall, extending down to the baseboard.

The second floor of the front section of the house has the same floor plan as the
first, with a large dressing room opening off of the master bedroom over the first
floor entrance. All fireplaces are of the same design as those on the first floor,
but are cast iron instead of marble.

The rear section of the house has approximately ten foot ceilings. The hall of the
old section abuts the back wall of the newer section (see plan 1), with a door on

the first floor leading from the central hall of the front section -to the central
hall of the rear section, meeting at a perpendicular. A utility room now occupies
the area which was originally the recessed entry to the original house, on the north
side of the building. At the opposite end of the hall, where a bath has been in-
stalled, was originally the location of the staircase. At the time of construction
of the front section, this staircase was removed and another was built between the
two remaining rooms on the first floor. It is:a very narrow and steep stairway. Doors
lead from both of these rooms to the outside. These were originally windows and were
converted to doors at the same time. The second floor of the rear section is iden-
tical to the first floor with one exception. The room above the original recessed
entry is smaller than the room below. It does not project beyond the facade as does
the room on the first floor. There are two doors which lead from the old to the new
section on the second floor. One door enters the stair landing of the new section
- from the hall of the old section. Another, from the hall of the old section to the
south bedroom of the new section, requires several steps due to differences in ceiling
heights of the two sections. '

The door and window frames in the old section of the house are simple, some with
modest cornices. The floors throughout both sections are wide pine planks, with
the exception of the oak parquet floor in the entry hall of the front section.
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There were several outbuildings before the subdivision of the estate in 1920. The
only remaining structure is an underground ice house, recently discovered by the
current owners. It is a brick domed room with a circular opening in the top of

the dome and is about twelve feet in diameter. The ice house probably had a frame
structure above ground, over the dome. The current owners, after unearthing the

ice house, sealed it back up and recovered it with earth. They plan to .restore it in
the future. :

The lot is irregularly shaped, approximately 175' x 90'. The house sits at a

slight diagonal on a treed lot, which is on the corner of Rosedale Avenue and
Richmond Drive (see map #1).
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In 1839, Bullock sold the house and surrounding acreage to Francis Thornton. Thorn-
ton, a minister, and his wife lived in the house for nearly thirty years. In 1844,
however, Thornton sold the property to William B. Clifton, who evidently rented

the house to Thornton.

Clifton was a local merchant, involved in various businesses. His most enterprising
venture was Clifton, Norton and Co., grocers and commission merchants. Clifton
never lived in the Bullock House but owned the property for twenty years. Upon his
death in 1864, Clifton's son, Charles H. Clifton inherited the property. In 1873,
Charles had the front section of the house constructed. The eastern half of the
Bullock House was removed, leaving the central hall, and the Steamboat Italianate/ .
Eastlake style residence was built facing Bardstown Road, an eastwardly direction.
According to local directories, young Clifton lived in the new house for only

a few years and finally sold it to John E. Norris in 1884,

Oral history has embellished the facts surrounding the house and Mr. Norris. It has
in the past been assumed that the house was built by Norris. Norris was said to have
been a retired steamboat captain and built the house resembling a steamboat, with
its grand cupola in order that he might view the Ohio River and its passing river-
boats. The legend continues that 'Captain' Norris resorted to hanging himself in

the cupola, unable to tolerate his retirement from the river.

Unfortunately, none of this splendid legend is true. Norris was a wealthy stocktrader,
having been involved with the Bourbon Stockyards for forty years. He was also presi-
dent of Ohio Falls Dye and Finish Works for twenty years. Norris was never a river-
boat captain. Nor did he hang himself in the cupola. Rather, he died peacefully
while napping in his hammock on the front porch of his home in 1918.

After Norris's death, Wm. Randolph, a developer, purchased the house and surrounding
thirty-two acres. The area was quickly subdivided. Arthur Yunker purchased several
tracts in 1920, including the Bullock-Clifton House. The Yunker family lived in the
house for 57 years, thus it is commonly known as the Yunker House.

- Architecturally, the house contains many unique aspects. No other known residence
in the city of Louisville is designed in the extravagant Steamboat Gothic style

of the Bullock-Clifton House. No surface of .the exterior is untouched by decorative
elements: extraordinary bargeboards, carved panels, unusual window and door hoods,
‘finely carved brackets with pindells, gables, arches and, the crowning glory, an
octagonal cupola. The interior has equally lavish elements; marble and cast iron
mantels and fireplaces in each room, Lincrusta-Walton wainscoting, several bay
windows of various shapes, wide window and door frames and baseboards and beautiful
chandeliers.
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The Federal style.of the rear section of the house is the oldest known frame residence
in Louisville. The exterior was altered in 1873 when the front section was added,
but the Federal style remains evident.

The manner in which the two houses were joined is, in itself, an ingenious solution
to a difficult problem. Then the front section of the house was constructed in
1873, it was only logical that it face Bardstown Road, a busy country road in those
days. But constructing the new section with its central hall perpendicular to the
-central hall of the old section is a very practlcal de51gn ‘'The crossed axes make-
‘for sensible traffic patterns. The original staircase in thé central hall of the
Federal residence was no longer needed and would have created ‘problems. in connecting
the two sections. It was, therefore, removed and another 4dded between the two ré-
maining rooms on the first floor. On the second floor the differences in ceiling
heights of the two sections caused little problem. One of the connecting doorways
leads to the main stair landing of the front section and the second doorway is simply
reached by several steps. : :
The Bullock Cllfton House is archltecturally and historically 1mportant to LOUISVIIIG 'S’
history. Both the Steamboat Gothic style of the front section and the frame Federal
style of the rear section are unique to the city. Their combination into one residence
is masterful. William Bullock, the first owner of the_ property, was a vital force
in the mid-nineteenth century educational and humanitarian movement.
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FOOTNOTES

1
Historical information on William Bullock compiled from Joblin, M.

and Co. (ed.), Louisville Past and Present (Louisville: John P. Morton and Co.,
1875), pp. 120-25.

2

Dana, Richard H., Jr., The 0ld Hill Towns of Windham County, Connecticut
("The White Pine Series of Architectural Monographs,'" Vol. X, No. 1; St. Paul,
Minn.: White Pine Bureau, 1924), p. 12.
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Haldeman Louisville Directory. Louisville, Kentucky: 1844-45,

- Jefferson -Cownty Courthouse, ‘Deed Books

""John Edward Norrls Dles...” Courler Journal August 2, 1918.

Louisville Past and Present. Edited by M. Joblln and Co.- Louisville, Kentucky:-
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Bullock-Clifton House
1824 Rosedale Ave.
Louisville, Jefferson, Kentucky
Map 1 - Sanborn Map

Sanborn Map Co., 1972



BULLOCK~CLIFTON HOUSE - first floor plan
(not to scale)
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The Bullock-Clifton House
1824 Rosedale Ave.
Louisville, Jefferson, KY

Floor Plan #]



BULLOCK-CLIFTON HOUSE - second floor plan

(not to scale)
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The Bullock-Clifton House
1824 Rosedale Ave, -
Louisville, Jefferson, KY

. “Floor Plan #2



